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November 1, 2001

TO:  Citizens of the City of LaGrange, Georgia
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of LaGrange, Georgia

The comprehensive annual report of the City of LaGrange, Georgia (the City), for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2001 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness
and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account
groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's
financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical,
and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the Government's organization
chart, and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose financial
statements and the combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules.
The statistical section includes selected demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year
basis.

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single
Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
State and Local Governments. Information related to this single audit, including the schedule of federal
financial assistance and the auditor's reports on the internal control structure and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations is available on request from the City.

This report includes all funds and account groups of the City of LaGrange. The City of LaGrange,
incorporated in 1828, operates under the Council-Manager form of government. The City is organized
under eight (8) departments: Community and Economic Development, Finance, Fire, Human Resources,
Information and Technology, Police, Public Services and Public Utilities. These departments operate
under the direct supervision of the City Manager, who is appointed by the Mayor and Council, and
provide a full range of services to over 26,000 citizens. Included among these services are traditional city
functions, such as police and fire protection, sanitation services (garbage and trash collection, landfill, and
recycling center), street construction and maintenance, parks and recreation services, building inspection,
zoning enforcement and economic development, as well as electric, gas, water and sewer utilities and
telecommunications services.

The Troup County Airport Authority, Troup County Parks & Recreation, Housing Authority of the City
of LaGrange, the LaGrange Industrial Development Authority and the Downtown Development Authority
of LaGrange have not met the established criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity and, accordingly,
are excluded from this report. i

CITY OF LAGRANGE
OFFICE OF THE CLERK-TREASURER
R O. Box 430 = LaGrange, Georgia 30241 = (706) 883-2010 - (706) 883-2020
email - jbell@lagrange-ga.org
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City of LaGrange is located in the west central part of Georgia, approximately 70 miles southwest of
the city of Atlanta with Interstate 85 and Interstate 185 adjacent on the east side of the city and West Point
Lake adjacent on the west side. ‘Hartsfield Atlanta International Airport is 45 minutes away via I-85 and
Columbus is less than an hour away via I-185 south. Full-service rail facilities are provided by CSX
east/west and north/south lines. Truck lines include interstate and intrastate carriers and local terminals.
Delivery services are provided by UPS, Federal Express, Purolator, Greyhound, Troup Express, Emory
and Atlanta Air Cargo.

LaGrange is home to over 40 industries in two industrial parks. The 1600 acre LaGrange Industrial Park
and LaGrange Industrial Park East, a 640 acre park, are home to a dozen Fortune 50 and Fortune 500
companies.

The economic condition and outlook for LaGrange remains cautiously optimistic but steady due to the
diversity of industry here. The City’s local option sales tax receipts increased just under 1.5% from last
year; however, the City’s revenues from utility sales increased just under 19%, as discussed in the
Financial Information - Enterprise Fund Section.

The unemployment rate for LaGrange for FY 2001 increased 1.3% over last year, and is an indicator of a
more cautious business and industrial community. The seven Georgia counties (Carroll, Coweta, Harris,
Heard, Meriwether, Talbot and Troup) contain over 135,000 people available to LaGrange’s labor force.
Nearby Alabama counties (Chambers and Randolph) add over 27,000 to the labor pool.

The Industrial Development Authority reports continuing activity in its contact and discussions with
industrial prospects from across the country. The City and the Industrial Development Authority through
an Existing Industry Program continue its efforts in working with all of our existing industries to offer
assistance through Quickstart programs and low-cost financing which allows them to grow and remain
competitive in the U.S. and abroad.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The final budget adopted by the Mayor and City Council on June 26, 2001 contains estimated expenses of
$82,952,009.

City expenses are budgeted to be up $11.9 million over last year with approximately 73% of the increase
coming as a result of huge increases in the wholesale cost of natural gas and increase in the electric costs
as a result of demand for increase electricity by commercial and industrial customers. Increased gas and
electric revenues offset the cost increases.

The City’s projected combined funds balance. for fiscal -year ending June 30, 2002 is $7,313,650, down
over $1.5 million as a result of the increased gas and electric expenses discussed above. The year end cash
balance is also lower because the City is required to invest approximately $3.5 million to construct the
next cell in the federally mandated “subtitle D” landfill. The cash balance does not include approximately
$2.5 million set aside for utility relocation for two road widening and improvement projects and associated
water line relocation. Further, the City has set aside almost $5 million in property/liability and health
insurance self-insurance funds.
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Another source of restricted cash is in the form of monies set aside in the Municipal Electric Authority of
Georgia (MEAG) Municipal Competitive Trust Fund and other City accounts for electric rate
stabilization. These funds are restricted and are to be used for rate stabilization purposes only in order to
assure LaGrange’s competitive place in a deregulated electric environment. These funds, along with over
$25 million in MEAG Competitive Trust monies will provide necessary to protect LaGrange from
stranded investment exposure and allow us to be competitive in customer marketing.

Another positive development in the City’s approach to competing in a deregulated environment is the
number of new services the City is able to offer and from which it is able to generate retained earnings.
Because price pressures will intensify in a deregulated electric environment, the City’s diversified service
offerings and enterprises, including telecommunications services, revenues from Municipal Court,
Probation and Collection services and residential and commercial sanitation services, now earn money for
the community and the additional income earned from these activities lessens the reliance on electric
profits to support General Fund activities.

In addition to these alternate sources of revenue, one advantage of diversifying our service offerings is the
future opportunity to bundle services when competing for electric customers. In the future, the City will
be able to present a potential customer with a package of services including electricity, natural gas,
sanitation services, water and sewer service, advanced telecommunication services and internet access.
This flexibility should result in a higher success rate for these residential, commercial and industrial
customers.

Last year, the City decided to provide free broadband internet access to every home in LaGrange. The
City minimized its expense for this project by partnering with Charter Communications who will pay fees
to the City for installation of the digital set-top converter boxes installed in customers homes. At the
beginning of the 2001-2002 fiscal year, the City made the decision to extend the program for an additional
twelve months. The worldwide exposure to this project has been very positive for LaGrange and should
continue to result in continued interest and additional investment in our community.

This is also the second year under the State of Georgia Service Delivery Strategies Act, which requires
that the cost of services be absorbed by the political jurisdiction whose citizens primarily benefit from the
service. Savings in the City’s cost for County inmate work crews and funding for Parks and Recreation,
Airport and Library services will again result in a $1.3 million reduction in City expenses for these
services. City residents will also benefit from these savings because they will no longer have to pay the
cost of many of these services through their County tax bills.

FISCAL YEAR 2001-2002 REVENUES

Again this year, the net tax rate for City residents will be 0. This is possible because General Fund
expenses are supported by net revenues from the City’s utility system. Other General Fund taxes,
including Local Option Sales Tax, Alcoholic Beverage Taxes, Licenses and Occupation Taxes should be
similar to the previous year. Likewise, Franchise Taxes are not estimated to change significantly from
their prior year. Municipal Court fines and Municipal Probation service fees are expected to remain at
prior year levels.

The Utility Fund contribution into the General Fund is budgeted at $6,500,000 for 01-02, up $500,000

from the prior year. The Utility Fund contribution to the General Capital Improvements Fund is budgeted
at $1.5 million, up $500,000 from 00-01.
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Utility Fund budgeted revenue is down slightly (just over .50%) over the prior year. The proposed areas
of decrease include about $600,000 in State water improvement grants, slightly over $2 million decrease
in gas sales, about $50,000 decrease in utility penalties and late fees. Areas of increase include about
$80,000 in earned interest, about $650,000 increase in electric revenues and about $980,000 in
telecommunications system revenue.

Sanitation Fund revenues are expected to increase a modest $80,000, or about 1.5%. Similar to last year,
growth in the Sanitation Fund has leveled off following substantial gains in the City’s market share in the
past years coupled with the fact that the City has not attempted to grow the sanitation business outside the
immediate Troup County area. Net revenues are more than adequate to provide funds to meet the City’s
obligations with regards to the new landfill construction

FISCAL YEAR 2001-2002 EXPENDITURES

As discussed above, total spending on City operations is budgeted to decrease from actual 00-01 expenses
by almost $1.5 million.

The City merit system, as in past years, is totally funded in this budget and includes money to provide an
average of 5% pay increases based on merit. Employee healthcare, workers compensation and liability
insurance are all included in this budget at prior year levels. The City’s health insurance fund and liability
fund are both financially sound and health and liability claims are not anticipated to increase during the
year.

Total City employment is expected to remain at the level of the previous fiscal year, and is consistent with
the City’s multi-year goal of keeping operating costs at minimum levels while not sacrificing customer

service.»

As mentioned above, total Utility Fund expense is expected to decrease approximately 3% in the wake of
wholesale gas prices decreasing from last years record highs.

Sanitation Fund expenses are budgeted to increase approximately $3.2 million due almost entirely to the
federally mandated construction of a new cell in the City’s “subtitle D” landfill.

CONCLUSION

The City’s 2001-2002 budget, with the exception of electric and gas revenues and expenses as previously
discussed and “subtitle D” landfill construction is in line with the prior year budget. There is a minimum
amount of new equipment purchased and street and utility construction proposed. However, repair and
maintenance funds are fully budgeted to assure high quality utility -and telecommunications services to the
City’s customers. The estimated year end cash balances continue to reflect the City’s stable financial
condition and provide financial stability which enables LaGrange to continue providing high quality
services at affordable competitive prices.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from losses, theft or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and 2) the
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Single Audit:

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City is also responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management.

As a part of the City of LaGrange's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine if the City has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The
results of the City's single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, provided no instances of material
weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws and regulations.

Budgeting Controls:

In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls, the purpose of which is to assure compliance with the
legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City Council of LaGrange.
Activities of the general fund and debt service fund are included in the annual appropriated budget.
Project length financial plans are adopted for the capital projects and special revenue funds. The level of
budgetary control (that is the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount)
is established by individual fund. The City also maintains an encumbrance account system as one
technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year end and are
reappropriated in the following year's budget.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the City
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedule presents a
summary of the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service Fund, and Capital Projects revenues for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to
the prior year's revenue.




Increase Percent
(Decrease) of
% of from Increase
Revenues Amount Total 2000 (Decrease)
Taxes, Licenses and Permits 8,253,038 73.23 176,114 2.18
Intergovernmental 303,031 2.69 (134,702) (30.77
Charges for services 263,893 2.34 87,959 50.00
Fines 1,270,246 11.27 146,636 13.05
Investment Income 211,405 1.88 (133,071) (38.63)
Donations 390,000 3.46 173,489 80.13
Miscellaneous 577,965 5.13 258,191 80.74
TOTAL 11,269,578 | 100.00 574,616 5.37

As shown above, taxes, licenses and permits revenue was up just over $175,000, with about 1/3 of the
gain being credited to increases in the collection of local option sales tax revenue. Slight gains were also
recordéd in license and occupational taxes, franchise fees and building permit fees. Revenue from charges
for services more than doubled due to a Police Services Agreement generating about $115,000 in new

revenue.

Fines and Forfeitures revenue grew by almost $150,000, or about 13%, as a result of the City Municipal

Court Probation Office completing its first full year of operation.

Increase
(Decrease) Percent of
% of from Increase
Expenditures Amount Total 1999 (Decrease)
General Government 1,305,100 5.82 (137,992) (9.69)
Public Safety 8,750,529 39.01 252,553 2.97
Public Services 2,962,267 13.20 (84,252) 2.77)
Culture and Recreation 981,100 4.37 (67,431) (6.43)
Community Development 1,231,218 . 5.49 (156,307) .- . |.(11.27)
Capital Outlay 5,936,643 26.46 3,346,902 129.24
Debt Service 1,266,869 5.65 (255,559) (16.79)
TOTAL 22,433,726 100.00 2,895,914 14.82
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Governmental funds expenses coupled with Capital Projects Funds expenses increased by almost $2.9
million due to growth in public safety expenses of over $250,000 and capital outlays expense increase of
over $3.3 million offset by decreases in general government, public services, community development and
culture and recreation expense of $450,000 and a decrease in debt service of slightly over $250,000.

The above schedule presents a summary of governmental funds and Capital Projects Fund expenditures
for fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, and the percentage of increases and decreases in relation to the prior
year amounts.

Enterprise Fund:

Total Utility Fund revenue (electricity, gas, water, sewer and telecommunications) increased by over 21%
or about $11.4 million while Sanitation Fund revenues grew by almost 6% at $277,213. Water and sewer
revenues shrunk by just over $300,000, gas revenues had tremendous gains of over $9.2 million (up 88 %)
and electric system revenues grew by about $3.9 million (up just under 13%). Overall, total Enterprise
Funds operating income was at down from the prior year by $3.5 million due to huge increases in
wholesale gas prices caused by the extremely cold winter and resultant gas shortages; however, increases
in the non-operating revenue of over $800,000 brought “income before transfers” to within 95% of the
prior year level.

Pension Benefit Plan:

The City contributes to the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System, an agent multiple/employer
public employee retirement system administered by the Georgia Municipal Association. All full time City
employees and all City officials are eligible to participate in the system, and the employee becomes vested
after 10 years of service.

The employee's participation is non-contributory; however, the City is subject to the minimum funding
standards for the Public Retirement System Standard Law. The policy set by the City for contributing the
annual pension expenses exceeds the minimum requirements. The Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit
System is actuarially sound and all indications are that this will continue.

Debt Administration:

At June 30, 2001, the general long term debt balance was $6,100,405, consisting of $490,000 in General
Fund bonds which were issued to purchase property to be used for industrial development purposes, and
$5,610,405 in capital leases. Enterprise Fund debt included $36,470,000 in water and sewer bonds and
$7,240,000 in solid waste bonds, less $389,274 in unamortized discounts. Outstanding debt in the
Enterprise Fund also included capital leases of $2,660,301 and notes payable of $2,252,710 in the form of
a State of Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority loan for water and sewer improvements.
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Cash Management:

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in certificates of deposit and interest bearing checking
accounts. Interest rates varied between 3.78% and 6.20% on investments due to the amount of the
investment and dates of maturity.

The City's investment policy is to minimize credit and market risk while maintaining a competitive yield
on its portfolio. Accordingly, deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or
collateralized. All collateral for deposits was held by a financial institution's trust department in the City's
name.

Risk Management:

The City is "self-insured” in the area of liability, property and workers' compensation, meaning that the
City assumes some increased liability for insurance losses but is protected from catastrophic losses and
aggregate losses through the purchase of excess insurance coverage. Savings since the program began in
1990 total just over $2.4 million when compared with a similar conventional insurance program.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit:

Georgia Law requires cities to be audited every two years by independent certified public accountants.
The City chooses to have an annual audit and this year the Council selected the firm of Grant Thornton,
LLP to'perform the audit. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state law, the audit was also
designed to meet the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and related OMB
Circular A-133. The auditor's report on general purpose financial statements and individual fund and
account group statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's
reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the Single Audit Section.

Awards:

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of LaGrange for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000. This was the thirteenth
year the City has received this award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents
conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principals
and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report

continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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Grant Thornton &

Accountants and ’ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Management Consultants

The U.S. Member Firm of

Grant Thornton International

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
The City of LaGrange, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of LaGrange, Georgia (the
"City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2001, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the City’s management. OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the City as of June 30, 2001, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its
proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying financial information listed as supplemental information in the table of contents is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of
the City. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated August 31, 2001 on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain laws,
regulations, contracts and grants.

hant Ohoratins 4L

Atlanta, Georgia
August 31, 2001

2300 North Tower

235 Peachtree Street, N.E.
Atlanta, GA 30303-1499
Tel: 404 330-2000

Fax: 404 330-2047
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City of LaGrange, Georgia

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

Year ended June 30, 2001

Revenues

Taxes, licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income (loss)
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public service
Culture and recreation
Community development
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of expenditures over revenues
Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Proceeds from capital lease
Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other sources
over expenditures and other uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
8,210,300 $ 8,253,038 $ 42,738
- 155,855 155,855

162,000 263,893 101,893
1,288,000 1,270,246 (17,754)
63,300 (101,234) (164,534)

72.300 133.622 61,322
9,795,900 9,975,420 179,520
1,191,400 1,305,100 (113,700)
8,443,100 8,750,529 (307,429)
2,497,400 2,962,267 464,867)

1,460,500 981,100 479,400
824,900 870,799 (45,899)
965,900 1,149,978 (184.078)
15,383,200 16,019,773 (636.573)
(5,587,300) (6,044,353) (457,053)

6,000,000 6,003,879 3,879
- (1,000,703) (1,000,703)

- 1,041,978 1,041,978

6,000,000 6.045.154 45,154
412,700 801 (411,899)

846,607 846,607 -
$.1259307 $_ 847408 $  (411.899)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.



City of LaGrange, Georgia

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - SPECIAL REVENUE

Year ended June 30, 2001

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
Redevelopment and housing
Administrative and management
Total expenditures
Excess of expenditures over revenues

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ - $ 139,676 $ 139,676
60,900 65,261 4,361
91,500 100,194 8.694
152,400 305,131 152,731
196,500 289,320 (92,820)
36,933 71.099 (34,166)
233.433 360.419 (126.986)
(81,033) (55,288) 25,745
3,973,150 3,973,150 -
3,892,117 $3,917,862 $___ 25,745



City of LaGrange, Georgia

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - DEBT SERVICE

Year ended June 30, 2001

Revenues
Investment income

Total revenues
Expenditures
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess of expenditures over revenues

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources

Excess of expenditures over revenue

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
105,000 $_ 122,521 $ 17,521
105,000 122,521 17,521
- 1,071,711 -
90,250 195,158 (104,908)
90,250 1,266,869 (104.,908)
14,750 (1,144,348) (2,547,159)
- 1,117,296 1,117,296
- 1,117,296 1,117,256
14,750 (27,052) (41,802)
2,413,789 2,413,789 -
2,428,539  $_2,386,737 $___ (41,802)




City of LaGrange, Georgia

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - CAPITAL PROJECTS

Year ended June 30, 2001

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Interest
Donations
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures
Capital outlays
Total expenditures
Excess of expenditures over revenues
Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in
" Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources

Excess of expenditures over revenue

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

10

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ - $ 7,500 $ 7,500
30,000 124,857 94,857
1,000 390,000 389,000
- 344,149 344,149
31,000 866,506 835,506
1,404,000 4,786,665 (3,382.665)
1.404.000 4.786.665 (3,382,665)
(1,373,000) (3,920,159) (2,547,159)
1,000,000 1,000,000 -
- (204.485) (204.485)
1,000,000 795,515 (204.485)
(373,000) (3,124,644) (2,751,644)
4,218.328 4,218,328 -
$_ 3.845328 $_1.093 684 $ (2,751,644)



City of LaGrange, Georgia

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS -
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Year ended June 30, 2001

(with comparative totals for year ended June 30, 2000)

Propriety Fund Types Totals
Internal (Memorandum Only)
Enterprise Service 2001 2000
Operating revenues

Water system $ 6,697,286 $ - $ 6,697,286 $ 6,924,752
Sewer system 4,733,371 - 4,733,371 4,815,745
Gas system 19,523,208 - 19,523,208 10,369,616
Electric system 34,366,002 - 34,366,002 30,473,645
Sanitation 5,087,571 - 5,087,571 4,810,358
Premiums - 3,744,734 3,744,734 3,670,213
Other 43,289 - 43,289 1,374,554

Total operating revenues 70,450,727 3,744,734 74,195,461 62,438,883

Operating expenses

Water system 2,292,184 - 2,292,184 2,467,860
Sewer system 3,053,188 - 3,053,188 3,021,616
Gas system 16,639,351 - 16,639,351 7,929,265
Electric system 28,991,399 - 28,991,399 24,896,532
Sanitation 3,143,433 - 3,143,433 3,030,512
Administrative support 2,415,635 - 2,415,635 1,931,748
Depreciation 4,708,147 - 4,708,147 4,108,432
Risk management - 3,902,332 3,902,332 3,193,825

Total operating expenses 61,243,337 3,902,332 65,145.669 50,579,790

Operating income (loss) 9,207,390 (157,598) 9,049,792 11,859,093
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS -~
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Year ended June 30, 2001

(with comparative totals for year ended June 30, 2000)

Propriety Fund Types Totals
Internal (Memorandum Only)
Enterprise Service 2001 2000
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment income 955,940 266,312 1,222,252 1,349,727
Other revenue 1,533,068 - 1,533,068 263,685
Interest expense (2,409,053) - (2,409,053) (2,433,739)
Other expense (931) - (931) (2.903)
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses) 79.024 266,312 345,336 (823,230)
Income before operating
transfers 9,286,414 108,714 9,395,128 11,035,863
Operating transfers in 4,143,433 - 4,143,433 -
Operating transfers out (11,059.,420) - (11,059.420) (8.,524.315)
Total operating transfers (6.915.987) - _(6.915,987) _(8.524,315)
Net income 2,370,427 108,714 2,479,141 2,511,548
Retained earnings, beginning of year 43.947.164 3,864,844 47,812,008 45,300,460

Retained earnings, end of year

$46,317,591 $.3,973,558

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

12
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City of LaGrange, Georgia

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Year ended June 30, 2001
(with comparative totals for year ended June 30, 2000)

Propriety Fund Types Totals
Internal (Memorandum Only)

Enterprise Service 2001 2000

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating income $ 9,207,390 $ (157,598) $ 9,049,792 $ 11,859,093
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 4,708,147 - 4,708,147 4,108,432
Gain on sale of fixed assets - - - (28,021)
Change in operating assets
and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (1,179,996) - (1,179,996) (2,031,477)
Deposits - (39,990) (39,990) -
Inventory (98,591) - (98,591) (794)
Other assets 25,759 - 25,759 26,929
Accounts payable (508,841) - (508,841) 717,586
Claims payable - 270,888 270,888 -
Accrued vacation 8,264 - 8,264 5,764
Deferred income 2,209,153 - 2,209,153 12,120,668
Other accrued expenses 505,291 - 505,291 684,989
Customer deposits 23,827 - 23,827 53,865
Other nonoperating revenue, net _ 1,532,137 - 1,532,137 243,065
Net cash provided by
operating activities 16,432,540 73,300 16,505,840 27,760,099
Cash flow from noncapital financing
activities:
Operating transfers in 4,143,433 - 4,143,433 -
Operating transfers out (11,059.420) - (11,059.420) (8.524.315)
Net cash used for noncapital
financing activities (6,915,987) - (6,915,987) (8,524,315)

13




COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

City of LaGrange, Georgia

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES - CONTINUED

Year ended June 30, 2001

(with comparative totals for year ended June 30, 2000)

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:

Principal payments on revenue bonds

Acquisition of capital assets
Capital lease payments
Proceeds from notes payable
Payments on notes payable
Interest expense

Disposal of capital assets
Contributed capital

Net cash used for capital
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest income
Net increase in cash

Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents,
end of year

Report on the balance sheet as:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Total

Propriety Fund Types

Totals

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:

Equipment acquired through

assumption of capital lease obligation $

536,823

$ -

$__536,823

Internal (Memorandum Only)
Enterprise Service 2001 2000
(2,936,477) - (2,936,477) (2,680,510)
2,473,151) - (2,473,151) (4,996,178)
(884,843) - (884,843) (583,172)
661,161 - 661,161 1,139,965
(207,434) - (207,434) (136,925)
(2,409,053) - (2,409,053) (2,433,739)
- - - 35,167
- - - 999.000
(8,249,797) - (8,249,797)  (8,665,392)
955.940 266.312 1,222.252 1,349,727
2,222,696 339,612 2,562,308 11,920,119
38,154,768 4.677.844 42.832.612 30,912.493
$40,377,464  $5,017,456 $_45,394,920 $42,832,612
$ 13,731,569 $5,017,456 $ 18,749,025 $16,950,390
26.645.895 - 26.645.895 25.882.222
$40,377.464  $5,017.456 $_45,394.920 $42.832.612

$.1,576,627

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2001

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of LaGrange, Georgia (the City) was incorporated in 1828, under the provisions of the State
of Georgia. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the
following services: public safety (police and fire), highway and street, sanitation, health and social
services, culture recreation, community development, planning and zoning and general administrative
services.

The accounting policies of the City of LaGrange, Georgia conform to generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the City’s more significant

accounting policies used in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements.

1. The Reporting Entity

The City of LaGrange, Georgia is a municipal corporation governed by a Mayor and six member
Council. The City has considered all potential component units for inclusion in these financial
statements and determined that the Solid Waste Management Authority of the City of LaGrange
should be included on a blended basis.

The Solid Waste Management Authority of the City of LaGrange (the "Authority”), consists of an
eight member board appointed by the governing authority of the City. The Authority provides a
means to issue revenue bonds. Although it is legally separate from the City, the Authority is reported
as if it were a part of the City’s Solid Waste Fund because its sole purpose is to finance, construct,
equip, expand and maintain the City’s solid waste facilities. Separate financial statements are not
prepared by the Solid Waste Management Authority.

2. Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups. A fund is a
separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities,
fund equity, revenues and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be
spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are organized by
type in the financial statements. An account group is a financial reporting device designed to provide
accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not
directly affect net expendable available financial resources.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

2. Basis of Presentation ~ Fund Accounting — Continued

The following fund types and account groups are used by the City.
Governmental funds

Governmental funds are accounted for on a flow of current financial resources measurement focus.
Therefore, generally only current assets and liabilities are included on their balance sheets. One
exception is long-term notes receivable. Reported fund balances constitute a measure of available
spendable resources or in the case of long-term notes receivable, a reserve for long-term receivables.

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for
-all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

:Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for the activities carried out by the City under the term of
certain intergovernmental grants.

‘Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and the subsequent
disbursement of such resources to pay principal and interest on long-term debt of the City (other than
the debt of the Enterprise Funds).

Capital Projects Fund - This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and the subsequent
disbursement of such resources in obtaining or renovating major fixed assets.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary Funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus. All
assets and liabilities associated with these activities are included on their balance sheets.

Enterprise Funds - these funds account for operations of the City which are to be financed and
operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise in which: the costs (including
depreciation) incurred in providing services are being recovered primarily through user charges.

Internal Service Funds - These funds account for the activities of the City’s group insurance and
property and casualty insurance programs which provide for the partial self-insurance of employee
medical, workers compensation and liability claims.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

2. Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting — Continued

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other
governments, or on behalf of other funds within the government.

Agency Fund - This fund is used to account for assets the City holds on behalf of others as their
agent.

Account Groups
Account groups are used to establish accounting control and accountability for the City’s general
fixed assets and general long-term obligations. Account Groups are not funds and do not measure

results of operations. The following are the City’s Account Groups:

General Fixed Assets Account Group — This group accounts for the fixed assets of the City (except
those accounted for by the Proprietary Funds).

General Long-term Debt Account Group - This group accounts for the unmatured long-term
indebtedness of the City (except debt to be paid from the Enterprise Funds), the resources currently
available to extinguish the debt and the amounts to be provided in the future to meet debt service
payments.

3. Basis of Accounting

The Governmental Fund type statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when they become both
measurable and available. Property tax revenues are considered measurable and available to the
extent they are collected within the current period or collected by August 30, 2001. Property taxes
not collected by August 30, 2001 are recorded as deferred revenue and recognized when subsequently
collected. The City Council adopts a millage rate (as part of the budgetary process) based upon
estimated property assessments as of January 1. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on
property as of January 1. After approval of the tax digest by the State of Georgia, taxes are levied on
October 1, and are payable to the City on November 15, and, if not paid, become delinquent on
November 16.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

3. Basis of Accounting - Continued

Revenues which are susceptible to accrual are property taxes, grants from other governments, charges
for services and interest on investments. Licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures and
miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally
not measurable until actually received.

Expenditures are recognized under the modified accrual basis when the fund liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest of long-term debt and vacation pay which is recorded as an
expenditure when due and payable from available spendable resources. Accumulated vested unpaid
vacation pay is recognized as an expenditure only to the extent that it will be paid from "available
spendable resources” (net current assets). Those costs that are not to be paid from current resources
are recorded in the General Long-term Debt Account Group.

“The Proprietary Fund type statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
raccrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they have been earned and are measurable,

expenses are recognized when they are incurred, if measurable. Unbilled utility charges are accrued
as receivables at year end and are reported as revenue of the Utility Fund. The City applies all FASB

‘pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for and reporting its

proprietary operations.

3. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

On or about May 1 of each year, the City Manager presents a proposed operating budget to the City
Council for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. After revisions, if any, by the council,
the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. The City Manager is authorized to
transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the
total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council. No supplemental
appropriations were made during the year ended June 30, 2001.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments are
recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension
of the formal budgetary process. Encumbrances outstanding do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities and are reappropriated in the subsequent year.- Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-
end.

The budgets for the General Fund, Special Revenue and Capital Projects are adopted on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). An annual operating budget is not
adopted for the Debt Service Fund. Proprietary fund type budgets are adopted for management
control purposes only.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia ;

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

—

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

3. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting - Continued

Adjustments necessary to convert the actual results of operations of the general fund at June 30, 2000 /
from GAAP to the non-GAAP budget bases are as follows:

General Fund |
Excess of revenues and other financing sources ‘3
over (under) expenditures and other

financing uses - GAAP budget basis $ 801
Capital outlay expenditures (1,041,978) |
Proceeds from capital leases 1,041,978

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other
financing uses — non-GAAP basis $ 801

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents shown on the balance sheet represent demand deposits and certificates of
deposit. All highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

6. Investments

The statutes of the State of Georgia authorize the City to invest in U.S. government obligations; U.S.
government agency obligation; State of Georgia obligations; obligations of other counties, municipal
corporations and political subdivisions of the State of Georgia which are rated "A" or better by
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.; negotiable certificates of deposit issued by any bank or trust
company organized under the laws of any state of the United States of America or any national
banking association; repurchase agreements when collateralized by U.S. Government or agency
obligations; and pooled investment programs sponsored by the State of Georgia for the investment of
local government funds.

Investments are stated at fair value based upon quoted market prices.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2001
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
7. Receivables

Receivables are reported net of an allowance for amounts deemed uncollectible.

8. Inventory

Inventory is valued at cost determined principally using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
Inventory is recorded on the consumption method which means that inventory acquisitions are
recorded in inventory accounts initially and charged as expenditures or expenses when used.

9. TFixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value on the date donated.
Construction period interest is capitalized with the cost of the asset. Public domain ("infrastructure”)
-general fixed assets consisting of certain improvements other than buildings including roads, bridges,
curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks and drainage systems are not capitalized. No depreciation
‘has been provided on general fixed assets.

Those assets in the Enterprise Funds are depreciated by the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Distribution systems 33-50 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Equipment and automobiles 5-10 years

10. Bond Discounts and Issuance Costs

Bond discounts and issuance costs related to the Water and Sewer Revenue bonds are deferred and
amortized over the term of the bonds using the interest method. Unamortized bond discounts are
presented as a reduction of the face amount of bonds payable whereas issuance costs are presented as
other assets.

11. Accrued Vacation

A liability for accrued vacation pay is recorded by the City. A liability for unused sick leave pay is
not recorded since these amounts do not vest.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia |
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

,,,,,

June 30, 2001

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued !

12. Memorandum Only - Total Columns |

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements and the combined statements are captioned

as "memorandum only” because they do not represent consolidated financial information and are [
presented only to facilitate financial analysis. These columns do not present information that reflects i
financial position, results of operations or cash flows in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

13. Comparative Data/ Reclassifications

Comparative date for the prior year has been presented in selected accompanying financial statements
in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City’s financial position and operations.
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to be consistent with the current year presentation.

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS

Deposits

At year end, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits and repurchase agreements was $49,993,881.
The carrying amount and bank balance of deposits was $29,496,881 and $31,294,391, respectively.
All of the bank balance was insured or collateralized with securities held by the City or its agent in
the City's name.

The City’s repurchase agreements of $20,497,000 were collateralized with securities held by its agent
in the City’s name.

Resiricted Investments

At year end, the City’s investments consisted of equity securities contributed to the City in a prior
year with a fair value of $ 385,315. These securities are held by the City in the name of the City.

NOTE C - ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

The Sanitation Fund has an accumulated deficit of $284,824. The deficit is due primarily to the
accrual of landfill closure and posiclosure costs. The fund has equity of $1,852,237 attributable to
contributed capital which exceeds the accumulated deficit.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE D - NOTES AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Notes receivable are from various Federal, state and local community development programs. Funds
were loaned to homeowners, landlords and businesses for rehabilitation and construction. These
notes receivable bear interest at various rates up to 10% per annum. Upon collection, the proceeds
from these notes receivable must be used for future program activity approved by the Department of
Housing and Urban Development.

The following is a schedule of future maturities of these notes by fiscal years ending June 30 and the
allowance for doubtful accounts:

2002 $ 14,000
2003 14,000
2004 14,000
2005 20,000
2006 20,000
Thereafter 7.626,583
7,708,583
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (4,034,146)
7
$.3,674,437

NOTE E - FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets account group for the year ended June 30, 2001,
follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2000 Additions Deletions 2001

Land and land
Improvements $ 4,981,066 $ 511,217 $ - $5,492,283
Buildings 6,588,761 3,183,179 - 9,771,940
Furniture and fixtures 130,195 21,135 - 151,330
Machinery and equipment 4,046,510 660,068 25,531 4,681,047
Vehicles 3,757,364 248,285 193,767 3,811,882
Other 14,618,335 1,167,571 - 15,785,906
Total $ 34,122,231 $.5,791,455 $_219,298 $39,694,388
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City of LaGrange, Georgia

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE E - FIXED ASSETS - Continued

A summary of proprietary fund type property, plant and equipment at June 30, 2001, is presented

below:

C B0 D2

W= V39,2614 R3 | * Transmission and distribution

L, 3022 .

Land $3,832.917
Buildings 26,504,191
Equipment 7,148,392
Furniture and fixtures 48,909
Motor vehicles 4,915,124
93,711,108

Other 15¢, 174590 14,126,963
Total FSe et 150 287,604
Less accumulated depreciation 3', /52,824 (45 682 471)
Net 53233306  $104,605,133

153 02354 Yep

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT

1. General Long-term Debt

" The following is a summary of changes in the City’s general long-term debt

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2000 Additions Payments 2001
Bonds $ 955,000 $ - % 465,000 $ 490,000
Capital leases 5,808,924 1,041,978 1,240,497 5,610,405
$.6,763,924 $1,041,978 $__1,705,497 $_6,100,405
%q\an@\
12 -3\ -of -
%’»‘ "‘3\5 L—‘.O'Oro 20
| Hee <,

5—’ 272,572

5762, %12~




City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued
Capital Leases
Capital leases included in the general long-term debt account group bear interest at 4.5% to 5.2%.

The carrying value of assets subject to these leases totals approximately $4,500,000. The following
is a summary of future maturities on these capital leases which are being repaid by the Debt Service

Fund.
Year ending June 30,
2002 $ 1,156,054
2003 903,814
2004 730,998
2005 663,234
2006 564,570
Thereafter 2.690.648
6,709,318
Less amount representing interest (1,098.913)
$_5,610,405
Bonds payable

The bonds payable, which were originally issued at an amouant of $1,835,000, bears interest at
4.25%. Future payments including interest of $30,000 required under this bond to be paid by the
Capital Projects are as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2002 520,000

$__520,000
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2001
NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

2. Enterprise Fund Debt

Bonds
Amount of
Original
Series Interest Rates Issuance Balance

1992 Water and Sewerage Revenue Bonds 4.90% t0 6.80% $ 4,805,000 § 475,000

1993 Water and Sewerage Revenue

Refunding Bonds 425%t05.25% 28,280,000 28,280,000

1997 Solid Waste Bonds 4.5% t0 4.85% 8,070,000 7,240,000

1999 Water and Sewerag_e Revenue

|

Refunding Bonds 3.5%t04.3% 9,540,000 7,715,000
Total bonds outstanding 43,710,000
Less unamortized discount (389,274)

Net bonds outstanding

The following is a summary of future debt service requirements, including interest of $13,119,348

for Enterprise Fund bonds:

Year ending June 30,

2002 $5,067,091
2003 5,073,782
2004 5,076,670
2005 5,080,752
2006 5,079,539
Thereafter 31.451,515

Total $.56,829,348
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

2. Enterprise Fund Debt - Continued

Capital Leases
The City is financing the acquisition of certain Enterprise Fund equipment, with a book value of
approximately $4,600,000, under agreements that qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes.

These leases bear interest at variable rates (4.5% to 5.2% at June 30, 2001).

The following is a schedule, by year, of future minimum lease payments under Enterprise Fund
capital leases together with the present value of the minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2001:

Year ending June 30,

2002 $ 902,178
2003 845,591
2004 719,963
2005 387,399
2006 121,898
Total minimum lease payments : 2,977,029
Less amounts representing
Interest (316,728)
Present value of net minimum
lease payments $_2,660,301
Notes Payable

The City’s Utility Fund borrowed funds for system improvements under notes payable bearing
interest at 4.24%. As of June 30, 2001, $2,252,710 has been drawn against the $2 592,500 notes
with future payments including interest of $911 550 as follows:

Year ending June 30, 231 .0
2002 $ 264,893 70,556
2003 306,155 -
2004 264,893
2005 141,111
2006 141,110
Thereafter 2.046.098
e —
$_3,164,260
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

2. Enterprise Fund Debt - Continued

Defeased Bonds
Periodically, the City will defease revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the

trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City’s financial
statements.

As of June 30, 2001, $32,985,000 of outstanding bonds are considered defeased.

NOTE G - RESERVED RETAINED EARNINGS AND FUND BALANCE

At June 30, 2001, reserved retained earnings consisted of the following:

Reserved for revenue bond debt service $ 4,301,437
Reserved for renewal and replacement 235,564
Total reserved retained earnings $_4,537,001

At June 30, 2001, reserved fund balance consisted of the following:

Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt Capital

General Revenue Service Projects
Reserved for perpetual care $ 460,689 $ - $ = § -
Reserved for inventory 257,333 - - -
Reserved for long-term receivables - 3,674,437 - -
Reserved for prepaid expenditures - - 36,532 -
Reserved for capital outlay - - - 1,093,684
Total reserved fund balance $ 718,022 $_3,674,437 $__ 36,532 $.1,093,684
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE H - RISK MANAGEMENT AND SELF-INSURANCE

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. To manage and provide for
these risks, the City has established a Group Insurance Fund and a Property & Casualty Insurance
Fund which are reported as internal service funds. These funds account for the risk financing
activities of the City and do not constitute a transfer of risk from the City.

Charges to other funds for these benefits are based upon an estimate of actual claims, administrative
costs and stop-loss insurance premiums. Such charges are reported as revenue in the internal service
funds and expenditures/expenses in the paying fund. An estimate of unpaid claims has been accrued
as of June 30, 2001.

TheCity records an estimated liability for employee medical claims, workers’ compensation, torts
and other claims against the City. Claims liabilities are based on estimates of the ultimate cost of
reported claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) and an estimate for claims incurred but
not reported based on historical experience.

Groub Insurance Fund

The purpose of this Fund is to pay the medical claims of City employees and their covered
dependents and to minimize the total cost of medical insurance to the City. Under this plan, the City
is self-insured for claims aggregating up to $1,000,000 for the year ended June 30, 2001. Claims
exceeding this amount are covered by a private insurance carrier.

Property & Casualty Insurance Fund )

The purpose of this Fund is to pay workers’ compensation, general, automobile and personal liability
claims. This program is administered by a third party, which provides claims review and processing.
Under this plan, the City is self-insured for claims aggregating up to $600,000 for the plan year
ended June 30, 2001. Claims exceeding this amount are covered by a private insurance carrier.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE H - RISK MANAGEMENT AND SELF-INSURANCE - Continued

The following represents changes in these liabilities for the last two fiscal years.

Group Property &
Insurance Casualty

Liability balance, June 30, 1999 275,000 575,000
Claims and changes in estimate 2,283,458 261,291
Claims payments (2,283,458) (236.291)
Liability balance, June 30, 2000 275,000 600,000
Claims and changes in estimate 2,803,171 227,090
Claims payments (2.532,283) (227,090)
Liability balance, June 30, 2001 $ 545,888 $__ 600,000

Changes in Coverage and Claims Paid

Neither the Group Insurance nor the Property & Casualty Fund had significant decreases in coverage
from the prior year. Also, neither fund paid claims that exceeded its insurance coverage for the past
three years.

NOTE I - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The City contributes as a participant to the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System (the
System), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system administered by the Georgia
Municipal Association. The System's Retirement Plan is a defined benefit plan that provides
retirement and disability benefits and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Public
Retirement systems Standard Law (Georgia Code Section 47-20-10) assigned the authority to establish
and amend the plan to the City of LaGrange. The Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit system
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to the Georgia
Municipal Employees Benefit System, 201 Pryor Street, S.W., Atlanta, Georgia 30303.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE I - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued

Funding Policy
25%7°

The City’s employees participation is noncontributory. The City is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate; the current rate is °3% of annual covered payroll. The contribution
requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the system’s
Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

The City’s annual pension cost of $312,613 was equal to the City’s required and actual contributions.
The required contribution was determined as part of the January 1, 2000 actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 8.0% investment
rate of return and (b) projected salary increases of 5.0% for inflation and 0.5% for merit or seniority.
The actuarial value of the Plan’s assets was determined using a roll forward of prior years' actuarial
value with contributions, disbursements and expected return on investments, plus 10% of investment
‘gain (loss) during 10 prior years, which smoothes the effects of short-term volatility in the market
value of investments. The plan’s period for amortizing the initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability
“for 30 years for 1982 and current changes in the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over 15 years for
actuarial gains and loses, 20 years for plan provisions and 30 years for actuarial assumptions and cost
methods as a level dollar amount. The amortization periods, if applicable, are open for this plan
year.

Trend Information

Trend information for the Annual Pension Cost (APC) is presented below:

Percentage Net
of APC Pension
Funding APC Contributed Obligation
6/30/99 $ 209,377 100% -
6/30/00 276,160 100 -
6/30/01 312,613 100 -
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE I - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued

Supplementary Information

The schedule of funding progress for the Plan is presented below:

Unfunded/
Actuarial Actuarial (Excess) UAAL asa
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) {0)] (b-a) (a/b) (©) ((b-a)/c)
1/1/99 $15,152,089 $12,531,586 $ (2,620,503) 120.9%  $ 9,266,990 (28.3)%
1/1/00 16,014,153 13,487,362 (2,526,791) 118.7 10,501,209 (24.1)
1/1/01 16,927,079 14,512,233 (2,414,846) 116.6 11,108,999 21.7)

NOTE J - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The following Enterprise funds have been created to provide various services to the general public:

Utility Fund - established to account for the operation of the City’s water, sewer, electrical, gas

and fiber optics services.

Sanitation Fund - established to account for the operation of the City’s waste disposal activities.

Segment information for these Enterprise Funds is summarized below for the year ended June 30,

2001:
Utility Sanitation
Fund Fund

Operating revenue $ 65,363,156 $ 5,087,571
Depreciation 3,638,157 1,062,990
Operating income 8,333,242 874,148
Operating transfers (out)/in, net (7,114,420) 198,433
Net income 1,571,251 799,176
Capital contributions - -
Property, plant and equipment additions 2,609,767 400,207
Net working capital 13,004,031 (327,243)
Total assets 140,636,826 14,651,842
Total long-term liabilities 59,491,665 7,726,529
Total equity 74,958,942 1,852,237
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City of LaGrange, Georgia

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE I - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued

Supplementary Information

The schedule of funding progress for the Plan is presented below:

Liability (AAL

Actuarial
Actuarial Value of
Valuation Assets
Date )
1/1/99 $15,152,089
1/1/00 16,014,153
1/1/01 16,927,079

Unfunded/
(Excess) UAAlL asa
AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
(b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
$ (2,620,503) 120.9%  $ 9,266,990 (28.3)%
(2,526,791) 118.7 10,501,209 (24.1)
(2,414,846) 116.6 11,108,999 (21.7)

NOTE J - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

‘The following Enterprise funds have been created to provide various services to the general public:

%5 Utility Pund - established to account for the operation of the City’s water, sewer, electrical, gas

and fiber optics services.

Sanitation Fund - established to account for the operation of the City’s waste disposal activities.

Segment information for these Enterprise Funds is summarized below for the year ended June 30,

2001:

Utility Sanitation
Fund Fund

Operating revenue $ 65,363,156 $ 5,087,571
Depreciation 3,638,157 1,062,990
Operating income 8,333,242 874,148
Operating transfers (out)/in, net (7,114,420) 198,433
Net income 1,571,251 799,176
Capital contributions - -
Property, plant and equipment additions 2,609,767 400,207
Net working capital 13,004,031 (327,243)
Total assets 140,636,826 14,651,842
Total long-term liabilities 59,491,665 7,726,529
Total equity 74,958,942 1,852,237



City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE K - COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES

Agreements with Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia

During 1976, the City, along with 45 other cities and one county, all political subdivisions of the
State of Georgia, entered into a Power Sales Contract with the Municipal Electric Authority of
Georgia, a public corporation and instrumentality of the State of Georgia.

Under the terms of the agreement, the Authority agrees to provide, and the Cities are obligated to
purchase, all of the cities’ bulk power supply requirements for a period not to exceed 50 years. The
cities have agreed to purchase all their future power and energy requirements in excess of that
received by the cities through the Southeastern Power Administration at prices intended to cover the
operating costs of the systems and to retire any debt incurred by the Authority. In the event that
revenues are insufficient to cover all costs and retire the outstanding debt, each City has guaranteed a
portion of the unpaid debt based on their individual entitlement shares of the output and services of
generating units acquired or constructed by the Authority. In addition, in the event of discontinued
service to a participant in default, the City would be obligated to purchase additional power subject to
contractual limitations.

At June 30, 2001, the outstanding debt of the Authority was approximately $3.5 billion. The City’s
guarantee varies by individual projects undertaken by the Authority and totals approximately $136
million at June 30, 2001.

On April 1, 1999, the City approved a resolution adopting the provisions of the Municipal
Competitive Trust (the “Trust”), which was created by MEAG for the mutual benefit of MEAG and
its wholesale customers which have elected to become beneficiaries. The Trust was established to
provide MEAG and the trust’s beneficiaries a means to mitigate the expected differential between
market rates for power and the costs of power generated by MEAG facilities, after deregulation of the
electric industry.

The Trust created two types of funds, which are held by MEAG in the name of the City. The first
type represents amounts that are available to the City for withdrawal without restriction. The second
type represents amounts that are available to the City in the form of a loan or as an off-set to billings
from MEAG for power usage if certain criteria related to the difference between the cost of power
generated by MEAG facilities and the market rates for power are met.

At June 30, 2001, $27,483,652 has been placed into the Trust for the benefit of the City, of which
$5,391,171 is available without restriction and $22,108,751 is subject to restrictions. Of the
$5,391,171 approximately $2,068,571 and $3,020,000 has been recognized as revenue for the years
ended June 30, 2000 and 2001, respectively. Due to the restricted nature of the $22,108,751, the
amount is reported as deferred revenue at June 30, 2001.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE K - COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued

Guarantee of Communication System Debt

Tas guaranteed the payment of debt totaling $9,245,000 at June 30, 2001 relating to a
prlvately owned communication system, a portion of which is utilized by the City for communication

activities.

NOTE L - JOINT VENTURES

The City has joined with Troup County, Georgia and other municipalities to create the Troup County
Airport Authority for the purpose of operating the LaGrange-Callaway Airport. The City appoints
four of the twelve members serving on the Authority. The operating capital budgets are funded by
user fees, government grants, and appropriations from the participant governments which vary each
jféar based on the Authority’s request. The City remitted $14,350 to the Authority during the year
‘ended June 30, 2001. The Authority has final authority for all budgeting and financial management.
The City’s interest is limited to certain City owned fixed assets used by the Authority. These fixed
assets are included in the general fixed assets account group.

' ,Complete financial statement for the Troup County Airport Authority can be obtained from the
Authority’s administrative office at 101 Airport Parkway, LaGrange, Georgia 30240.

Under Georgia Law, the City, in conjunction with other Cities and Counties in the five county west
Georgia area, is a member of the Chattahoochee-Flint Regional Development Center (the “RDC”)
and is required to pay annual dues thereto. During the year ended June 30, 2001, the City paid no
dues. Membership in an RDC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA)
Section 50-8-34 which provides for the organizational structure of the RDC in Georgia. The RDC
Board membership includes the chief elected official of each county and municipality in the area.
OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of an
RDC.  Separate financial statements may be obtained from: Chattahochee-Flint Regional
Development Center, P.O. Box 1600, Franklin, Georgia 30217.

NOTE M - HOTEL / MOTEL LODGING TAX

During the year ended June 30, 2001, the City levied a 5% lodging tax. The Official Code of Georgia
Annotated 48-13-50 requires that all lodging taxes levied in excess of 3% be expended or obligated
contractually for the promotion of tourism, conventions or trade shows. The LaGrange-Troup
County Chamber of Commerce has certified that the $129,414 of lodging tax received from the City
during the year ended June 30, 2001 was used for the promotion of tourism.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2001

NOTE N - RELATED ORGANIZATION

The City's council is responsible for appointing a majority of the board members of the City of
LaGrange Housing Authority. However, the City has no further accountability for the Authority.

NOTE O - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COST

State and Federal laws and regulations require the City’s Sanitation Fund to place a cover on landfill
sites when it stops accepting waste, and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at
the sites for thirty years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will not be paid
until after the date a landfill stops accepting waste, the Sanitation Fund is required to accrue these
closure and postclosure care costs over the landfill's operational period. The $3,955,621 reported as
the landfill closure and postclosure care liability at June 30, 2001 includes $1,986,464, which
represents the cumulative amount accrued to date, less amounts already paid, based on the use of one
hundred percent of the estimated capacity of the landfill which was closed during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1998. The liability is based on the current costs of closure and postclosure care.
Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

The remaining amount reported as landfill closure and postclosure cost of $1,969,157 relates to an
additional landfill site, which began accepting waste during the year ended June 30, 1999. This
landfill site has an estimated closure and postclosure cost of $9,845,785, which is based on the
current cost necessary to perform all closure and postclosure care. The City expects to close the
landfill in 2017. As of June 30, 2001, 20% of this landfill’s capacity had been utilized and
accordingly, a liability of $1,969,157 has been recognized. The City will recognize the remaining
estimated closure and postclosure care of $7,876,628 as the remaining capacity is used.
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COMBINING, INDIVIDUAL FUND AND ACCOUNT GROUP
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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GENERAL FUND

This fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with governments which are not required to be
accounted for in another fund.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
General Fund

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,
ASSETS
2001
Cash and cash equivalents $ 843,349
Receivables
Taxes 419,050
Other 17,996
Inventory 257,333
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 75,374
Restricted investments 385.315
Total assets $_1,998.417
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 139,029
Accrued vacation 299,089
Other accrued liabilities 712,891
Total liabilities 1,151,009
Fund balance
Reserved for inventory 257,333
Reserved for perpetual care 460,689
Unreserved 129,386
Total fund balance 847.408
Total liabilities and fund balance $_1,998417
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—2000
$ 703,809

337,510
46,434
223,326
70,164
562,428

$_1,943.671

$ 108,560
277,917
710,587

1,097,064

223,326
632,592

(9.311)
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City of LaGrange, Georgia

General Fund

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURED

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Years ended June 30,

Revenues

Taxes, licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income (loss)
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
General government
* Public safety
Public service
Culture and recreation
Community development
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of expenditures over revenues
Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from capital lease

Total other financing sources

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year
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2001

$ 8,253,038
155,855
263,893

1,270,246
(101,234)
133,622
9,975,420

1,305,100
8,750,529
2,962,267
981,100
870,799
1,149,978
16,019,773

(6,044,353)
6,003,879
(1,000,703)
1.041,978
6.045.154

801

346,607

S__ 847,408

2000

$ 8,076,924
187,444
175,934

1,123,610
39,214

40,822

9,643,948

1,445,092
8,497,976
3,046,519
1,048,531
1,020,600
1,330,198
16,388,916

(6,744,968)
6,000,000
(411,434)

742,944
6,331,510

(413,458)
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

This fund accounts for activities carried out by the City under the terms of certain governmental grants.

Community Development Fund - to account for the revenues and expenditures provided under Title I of
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 to provide for development of viable urban
communities, including decent housing and suitable living environments and expansion of economic
opportunities, principally for persons of low and moderate income.
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2001
Cash and cash equivalents $ 220,993
Receivables
Notes 3,674,437
Intergovernmental 41,140
Accounts -
Total assets $_3.936.570
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 4,704
Accrued vacation 3,148
Customer deposits 10.856
Total liabilities 18,708
Fund balance
Reserved for long-term receivables 3,674,437
Unreserved 243.425
Total fund balance 3,917,862
Total liabilities and fund balance $_3,936,570

City of LaGrange, Georgia
Special Revenue Fund

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,

ASSETS

41

2000
$ 150,297

3,763,210

3,763,210
209,940

3.973.150

$_3.986.063




COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

City of LaGrange, Georgia
Special Revenue Fund

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenditures

Current
Redevelopment and housing

Administrative and management

Total expenditures

Excess of expenditures over revenues

Other financing sources
Operating transfers in

Excess of expenditures over revenue and

other financing sources
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Years ended June 30,

2001 2000
$ 139,676  $ 159,614
65,261 64,344
100.194 104,032
305,131 327,990
289,320 330,230
71,099 36.695
360.419 366.925
(55,288) (38,935)
- 34.414
(55,288) @,521)
3,973,150 3,977,671
$_3,917,862 $_3.973.150
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and the subsequent disbursement of such

resources to pay principal and interest on long-term debt of the City (other than debt of Proprietary
Fund Types).
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Debt Service Fund

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,
ASSETS
2001
Cash $ 2,350,205
Prepaid interest 36,532
Total assets $_2.386,737
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Fund balance

Reserved for prepaid expenditures $ 36,532
Unreserved 2.350,205
Total fund balance 2.386,737
Total liabilities and fund balance $_2.386,737
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2000

$ 2,363,962
49,827

$_2413.789

$ 49,827
2.363,962

2.413,789

$_2,413,789




Revenues
Interest

Total revenue

Expenditures

Principal retirement

Interest

Total expenditures

City of LaGrange, Georgia ‘
Debt Service Fund

Years ended June 30,

Excess of expenditures over revenues

Other financing sources
Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources

(Deficiency) excess of revenues and other financing

sources over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year
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COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

2001 2000
$_ 122,521 $__ 123,882
122,521 123,882
1,071,711 934,405
195,158 78.760
1,266,869 1,013,165
(1,144,348) (889,283)
1,117.296 1,105,318
1,117.296 1,105,318
(27,052) 216,035
2,413,789 2,197,754
$_2,386,737 $_2,413.789
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and the subsequent disbursements of such

resources in obtaining or renovating major fixed assets (other than those financed by the Enterprise
Funds).
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June 30,
ASSETS
2001
Cash $ 1,101,485
Restricted cash 7,555
Accounts receivable -
Total assets $_1,109,040
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 15,356
Fund balance
Unreserved 1,093,684
Reserved for capital outlay -
Total fund equity 1,093,684
Total liabilities and fund balance $_1,109,040

City of LaGrange, Georgia
Capital Projects Fund

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
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2000
$ 1,229,314
3,023,665
2,500

$_4.255.479

$ 37,151
1,194,663
3,023,665
4,218,328

$_4.255.479




City of LaGrange, Georgia
Capital Projects Fund

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Years ended June 30,

2001 2000
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 7,500 $ 90,675
Interest 71,819 117,036
Donations 390,000 216,511
Miscellaneous 469,006 174,920
Total revenues 866,506 599,142
Expenditures
Capital outlays 4,786,665 1,259,543
Debt service
Principal retirement - 450,000
Interest - 59,263
Total expenditures 4.786.665 1,768,806
Excess of expenditures over revenues (3,920,159) (1,169,664)
Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in 1,000,000 2,000,000
Operating transfers out (204,485) (203,983)
Proceeds from capital leases - 3,890.000
Total other financing sources 795,515 5,686,017
Excess of revenue and other sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses (3,124,644) 4,516,353
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year 4,218,328 (298,025)
Fund balance, end of year $_1,093.684 $_4,218,328
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Utility Fund ~ This fund accounts for the provision of utility services to the residents of the City and
some residents of the County. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this
fund, including, but not limited to administration, financing and related debt service and billing and
collection.

Sanitation Fund - This fund accounts for the operation of the City’s waste disposal activities.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Enterprise Funds

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Accounts
Other
Inventory
Restricted cash
Fixed assets — net
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to (from) other fund
Deferred revenue
Customer deposits
Revenue bonds - current
Notes payable - current
Capital leases - current
Revenue bonds - long-term
Note payable - long-term
Capital leases - long-term
Total liabilities

Fund equity
Contributed capital
Retained earnings (deficit)
Reserved for revenue bond debt service
Reserved for renewal and replacement
Unreserved
Total fund equity

Total liabilities and fund equity

June 30, 2001

ASSETS

Utility Sanitation

Fund Fund Total
$ 9,400,915 $ 4,330,654 $ 13,731,569
8,436,571 404,961 8,841,532
2,315 - 2,315
1,350,449 10,218 1,360,667
26,645,895 - 26,645,895
94,716,851 9,888,282 104,605,133
83.830 17.727 101,557
$140.636.826 $14,651,842  $155,288,668
$ 3,040,667 $ 121,550 $ 3,162,217
109,468 4,005,804 4,115,272
65,001 (65,001) -
22,108,751 - 22,108,751
853,296 4,216 857,512
2,590,000 445,000 3,035,000
174,277 - 174,277
206,806 565,723 772,529
33,535,111 6,750,615 40,285,726
2,078,433 - 2,078,433
916,074 971,698 _ 1,887,772
65,677,884 12,799,605 78,477,489
28,356,527 2,137,061 30,493,588
4,301,437 - 4,301,437
235,564 - 235,564
42.065.414 (284,824) 41.780.590
74.958.942 1,852.237 76.811.179
$140,636,826  $14,651,842  $155,288,66
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Enterprise Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Year ended June 30, 2001

Operating revenues
Water system
Sewer system
Gas system
Electric system
Sanitation
Other
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Water system
Sewer system
Gas system
Electric system
Sanitation
Administrative support
Depreciation
“ Total operating expenses

Operating income
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment income
Other income
Interest expense
Other expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income before operating transfers
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Total operating transfers
Net income

Retained earnings (deficit), beginning of year

Retained earnings (deficit), end of year

Utility Sanitation
Fund Fund Total
$ 6,697,286 $ - $ 6,697,286
4,733,371 - 4,733,371
19,523,208 - 19,523,208
34,366,002 - 34,366,002
- 5,087,571 5,087,571
43,289 - 43,289
65,363,156 5,087,571 70,450,727
2,292,184 - 2,292,184
3,053,188 - 3,053,188
16,639,351 - 16,639,351
28,991,399 - 28,991,399
- 3,143,433 3,143,433
2,415,635 - 2,415,635
3,638,157 1,069,990 4,708,147
57,029,914 4,213,423 61,243,337
8,333,242 874,148 9,207,390
798,137 157,803 955,940
1,507,713 25,355 1,533,068
(1,952,490) (456,563) (2,409,053)
(931) - (931)
352,429 (273.405) 79,024
8,685,671 600,743 9,286,414
3,945,000 198,433 4,143 433
(11,059.420) - (11.,059,420)
(7,114,420) 198,433 (6,915,987)
1,571,251 799,176 2,370,427
45,031,164 (1,084,000) 43,947,164
$46,602,415 $__ (284,824 $.46,317,591
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Enterprise Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended June 30, 2001

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued vacation
Due from other fund
Deferred revenue
Other accrued expenses
Customer deposits
Other nonoperating revenue, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing
activities
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Net cash provided (used) for noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities
Principal payments on revenue bonds
Acquisition of capital assets
Capital lease payments
Proceeds from notes payable
Payments on notes payable
Interest expense
Net cash used for capital
and related financing activities

Utility Sanitation
Fund Fund Total
$ 8,333,242 $ 874,148 $ 9,207,390
3,638,157 1,069,990 4,708,147
(1,267,412) 87,416 (1,179,996)
(93,132) (5,459) (98,591)
8,030 17,729 25,759
(609,553) 100,712 (508,841)
8,264 - 8,264
65,001 (65,001) -
2,209,153 - 2,209,153
- 505,291 505,291
22,368 1,459 23,827
1,506,782 25.355 1,532,137
13,820,900 2,611,640 16,432,540
3,945,000 198,433 4,143,433
(11,059.420) - (11,059.420)
(7,114,420) 198,433 (6,915,987)
(2,515,512) (420,965) (2,936,477)
(2,212,108) (261,043) (2,473,151)
(268,480) (616,363) (884,843)
661,161 - 661,161
(207,434) - (207,434)
(1,952.490) ~ (456.563) (2,409,053)
(6,494,863) (1,754,934) (8,249,797)



City of LaGrange, Georgia
Enterprise Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income

Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year
Reported on the balance sheet as
Cash and certificates of deposit

Restricted cash

Total

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:

Year ended June 30, 2001

Equipment acquired through assumption
of capital lease obligation

Utility Sanitation

Fund Fund Tota]
798,137 157,803 955,940
1,009,754 1,212,942 2,222,696
35,037,056 3,117,712 38,154,768
$.36,046.810 $ 4,330,654 $40,377.464
$ 9,400,915 $ 4,330,654 $ 13,731,569
26,645,895 - 26,645,895
$36,046,810 $.4,330,654 $40,377.464
$ 397,659 $_ 139,164 $__ 536,823
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Utility Fund

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

54

June 30,
ASSETS
2001 2000
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,400,915 $ 9,154,834
Receivables
Accounts 8,436,571 7,115,437
Other 2,315 56,037
Inventory 1,350,449 1,257,317
Restricted cash 26,645,895 25,882,222
Fixed assets, net 94,716,851 95,745,241
Other assets 83,830 91,860
Total assets $140,636,826
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 3,040,667 $ 3,650,220
Accrued vacation 109,468 101,204
Due to other fund 65,001 -
Deferred revenue 22,108,751 19,899,598
Customer deposits 853,296 830,928
Revenue bonds - current 2,590,000 2,485,000
Notes payable ~ current 174,277 160,570
Capital leases - current 206,806 206,071
Revenue bonds - long-term, net 33,535,111 36,155,623
Note payable - long-term 2,078,433 1,638,413
Capital leases - long-term 916,074 787,630
Total liabilities 65,677,884 65,915,257
Fund equity
Contributed capital 28,356,527 28,356,527
Retained earnings
Reserved for revenue bond debt service 4,301,437 4,350,075
Reserved for renewal and replacement 235,564 223,283
Reserved for rate stabilization - 1,387,938
Unreserved 42.065.414 39,069,868
Total fund equity 74,958,942 73,387,691
Total liabilities and fund equity $140,636,826




City of LaGrange, Georgia
Utility Fund

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Year ended June 30,
2001 2000
Operating revenues
Water system $ 6,697,286 $ 6,924,752
Sewer system 4,733,371 4,815,745
Gas system 19,523,208 10,369,616
Electric system 34,366,002 30,473,645
Other 43,289 1,374,554
Total operating revenues 65,363,156 53,958,312
Operating expenses
Water pumping and purification 1,321,596 1,465,043
Water distribution 970,588 1,002,817
Sewerage collection 833,739 688,193
Sewerage pumping and treatment 2,091,208 2,191,993
Water pollution control laboratory 128,241 141,430
Gas system 16,639,351 7,929,265
Electric system 28,991,399 24,896,532
Administrative services 2,415,635 1,931,748
Depreciation 3,638,157 3,561,432
© Total operating expenses 57,029.914 43,808,453
Operating income 8,333,242 10,149,859
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment income 798,137 916,705
Other income 1,507,713 246,637
Interest expense (1,952,490) (2,009,109)
Other expense (931) (2,903)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 352,429 (848.670)
Income before operating transfers 8,685,671 9,301,189
Operating transfers in 3,945,000 -
Operating transfers out (11,059.,420) (8,412,898)
Total operating transfers (7,114.420) (8.412.898)
Net income 1,571,251 888,291
Retained earnings, beginning of year 45,031,164 44,142,873
Retained earnings, end of year $46,602,415 $45,031,164
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City of LaGrange, Georgia

Utility Fund

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended June 30,

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Gain on sale of fixed assets
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued vacation
Due from other fund
Deferred revenue
Customer deposits
Other revenue, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Net cash used for noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from revenue bonds, net
Principal payments on revenue bonds
Acquisition of capital assets
Capital lease payments
Proceeds from notes payable
Payments on notes payable
Interest expense
Disposal of capital assets
Contributed capital

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities
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2001

$ 8,333,242

3,638,157

(1,267,412)
(93,132)
8,030
(609,553)
8,264
65,001
2,209,153
22,368
1,506,782

13,820,900

3,945,000
(11,059.420)

(7,114,420)

(2,515,512)
(2,212,108)
(268,480)
661,161
(207,434)
(1,952,490)

(6,494,863)

2000

$ 10,149,859

3,561,432
(6,738)

(1,931,188)
(334)
9,200
1,092,761
5,764

12,120,668
36,817
243,734

25,281,975

(8.412.898)

(8,412,898)

(2,275,510)
(4,410,499)
(36,639)
1,139,965
(136,925)
(2,009,109)
11,171
990,000

(6,727,546)



City of LaGrange, Georgia
Utility Fund

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

Years ended June 30,

2001 2000
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income 798.137 916,705
Net increase in cash 1,009,754 11,058,236
Cash, beginning of year 35,037,056 23,978,820
Cash, end of year $.36,046,810 $.35,037,056
Reported on the balance sheet as
Cash and certificate of deposit $ 9,400,915 $ 9,154,834
Restricted cash 26,645,895 25,882,222
Total $.36,046,810 $35,037,056
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:
LEquipment acquired through assumption of capital lease obligation $____397.659 $_ 847,122
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Utility Fund

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF REVENUES

Years ended June 30,

Water system
Water sales
Fire services
Connection fees
Miscellaneous

Sewer system
Sewer service charge
Connection fees
Miscellaneous

Gas system
Gas sales
Miscellaneous

Electric system
Electricity sales
Street and security lights
Miscellaneous

Other
Telecommunications sales
Penalties
Bad debt recoveries
Intergovernmental
Discounts to elderly

Total operating revenues

58

2001 2000

$ 6,511,976 $ 6,678,329
60,426 78,687
80,270 129,100
44.614 38.636
6,697,286 6,924,752
4,612,814 4,803,424
9,128 11,221
111,429 1,100
4,733,371 4,815,745
19,489,728 10,324,579
33.480 45,037
19,523,208 10,369,616
32,204,700 29,828,039
542,022 561,811
1,619,280 83,795
34,366,002 30,473,645
- 782,456

- 445,614

43,289 188,468

- 13,368
- (55.352)

43,289 1,374,554
$65.363,156  $53,958,312



Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due fro other fund
Inventory

Fixed assets, net

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Bonds payable - current
Capital leases — current
Bonds payable - long-term, net
Capital leases — long-term

Total liabilities
Fund equity
Contributed capital

Accumulated deficit

Total fund equity

City of LaGrange, Georgia
Sanitation Funds

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,

ASSETS

2001

$ 4,330,654
404,961
65,001
10,218
9,888,282
17,727

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Total liabilities and fund equity

59

$ 121,550
4,005,804
4,216
445,000
565,723
6,750,615
971,698

12,864,606

2,137,061

(284.824)

1,852,237

$14,716.843

2000

$ 3,117,712
492,377

4,759
10,558,065
35.456

$ 20,838
3,500,513
2,757
425,000
560,733
7,191,580
1,453,887

13,155,308
2,137,061
(1,084,000)

1,053,061




City of LaGrange, Georgia
Sanitation Funds

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

Years ended June 30,

2001 2000
Operating revenues
Garbage collection $ 3,194,011 $ 3,002,923
Landfill 1,806,785 1,706,806
Other 86,775 100,629
Total operating revenues 5,087,571 4,810,358
Operating expenses
Garbage collection 1,430,938 1,261,598
Landfill 1,643,291 1,682,879
Recycling center 69,204 86,035
Depreciation 1,069,990 547,000
Total operating expenses 4,213,423 3.577.512
Operating income 874,148 1,232,846
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment income 157,803 154,372
Other income 25,355 17,048
Interest expense (456,563) (424,630)
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) (273.405) (253.210)
Income before operating transfers 600,743 979,636
Operating transfers in 198,433 -
Operating transfers out - (111.,417)
Total operating transfers 198,433 (111,417)
Net income 799,176 868,219
Accumulated deficit, beginning of year {(1,084.000) (1,952.219)
Accumulated deficit, end of year $__(284,824) $_(1,084,000)
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Sanitation Funds

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended June 30,

2001
Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income $ 874,148
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 1,069,990

Gain on sale of fixed assets -

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 87,416
Inventory (5,459)
Other assets 17,729
Accounts payable 100,712
Due from other fund (65,001)
Other accrued expenses 505,291
Other nonoperating revenue, net 25,355

Customer deposits

1,459

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,611,640
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets (261,043)
Disposal of capital assets -
Capital lease payments (616,363)
Principal payments on revenue bonds (420,965)
Interest expense (456.563)

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (1,754,934)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating transfers in 198,433
Operating transfers out -
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities 198,433

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income 157,803
Net increase in cash 1,212,942

Cash, beginning of year 3,117,712
Cash, end of year $_4,330,654

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:
Equipment acquired through assumption of capital lease obligation $__ 139,164

ek nd 2 g
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2000

$ 1,232,846

547,000
(21,283)

(100,289)

(460)
17,729

(400,175)

684,989
17,048

(669)
1,976,736

(585,679)
23,996
(546,533)
(405,000)
(424,630)
(1,937,846)

111,417
(111,417)

154,372
81,845

3,035,867

$_3,117,712

$___729,505




INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Group Insurance Program - To account for the City’s partial self-insurance of employees’ medical
claims.

Property and Casualty Insurance Program - To account for the City’s partial self-insurance of workers’
compensation and liability claims.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Internal Service Funds

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2001

ASSETS
Group Property &
Insurance Casualty
Fund Fund Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,251,306 $ 2,766,150  $ 5,017,456
Deposits - 101,990 101,990
Total assets $.2,251,306 $2.868,140 §$5,119,446
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
Claims payable $ 545,888 $__ 600,000  $.1,145.888
Total liabilities 545,888 600,000 1,145,888
Fund equity
Retained earnings 1,705,418 2,268,140 3,973,558
Total liabilities and fund equity $.2,251,306 $2,868,140 $.5,119,446
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Internal Service Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Year ended June 30, 2001

Group
Insurance
Fund
Operating revenues, premiums $ 2,715,853
Operating expenses
Liability claims : -
Liability premiums -
Medical claims 2,803,171
Reinsurance premium 10,508
Administrative fee 183,353
Other premiums 192.010
Total operating expenses 3,189,042
Operating income (loss) 473,189)
Nonoperating revenues
Interest 138,259
Total nonoperating revenues 138,259
Net income (loss) (334,930)
Retained earnings, beginning of year 2,040,348
Retained earnings, end of year $.1,705,418

64

Property &
Casualty
Fund Total
$ 1,028,881  $ 3,744,734
227,090 227,090
436,868 436,868
- 2,803,171
- 10,508
49,332 232,685
- 192,010
713.290 3.902,332
315,591 (157,598)
128,053 266,312
128,053 266,312
443,644 108,714
1,824,496 3.864.844
$2,268,140  $3,973,558
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Internal Service Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended June 30, 2001

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:

Increase in claims payable
Increase in deposits

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income

Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

65

Group
Insurance
Fund

$ (473,189)

270,888

(202,301)

138,259
(64,042)
2,315,348

$.2,251,306

Property &
Casualty
Fund Total
$ 315,591 $ (157,598)
- 270,888
(39,990) (39,990)
275,601 73,300
128,053 266,312
403,654 339,612
2.362.496 4.677.844
$2,766,150 $.5,017,456



City of LaGrange, Georgia
Group Insurance Funds

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,
ASSETS
2001 2000 _
Cash and cash equivalents $_2,251,306 $_2,315,348
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
Claims payable $_ 545,888 $_ 275.000
Total liabilities 545,888 275,000
Fund equity
Retained earnings 1,705,418 2,040,348
Total liabilities and fund equity $.2,251,306 $.2,315,348

66



City of LaGrange, Georgia
Group Insurance Funds

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Years ended June 30,

2001 2000
Operating revenues, premiums $ 2,715,853 $ 2,648,738
Operating expenses

Medical claims 2803,171 2,283,458

Reinsurance premium 10,508 9,941

Administrative fee 183,353 126,705

Other premiums 192,010 179,711

Total operating expenses 3,189,042 2.599.815

Operating income (loss) (473,189) 48,923
Nonoperating revenues

Interest 138,259 156.485

- Total nonoperating revenues 138,259 156.485

<-Net income (loss) (334,930) 205,408

Retained earnings, beginning of year 2,040,348 1,834,940

Retained earnings, end of year $_1,705418 $_2.040,348
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Group Insurance Funds

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended June 30,

2001 2000

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating income (loss) $ (473,189 $ 48,923
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Increase in claims payable 270.888 -
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (202,301) 48,923

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income 138,259 156,485
Net increase in cash (64,042) 205,408
Cash, beginning of year 2,315,348 2,109,940
Cash, at end of year $_2,251,306 $_2,315,348
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2001
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,766,150
Deposits 101,990
Total assets $_2,868,140
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
Claims payable $ 600,000
Total liabilities 600,000
Fund equity
Retained earnings 2,268,140
Total liabilities and fund equity $ 2,868,140

City of LaGrange, Georgia
Property & Casualty Fund

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,

69

2000

$ 2,362,496
62,000

$_2,424,496

$__ 600,000

600,000




COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

City of LaGrange, Georgia
Property & Casualty Fund

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Operating revenues, premiums
Operating expenses
Liability claims
Liability premiums
Administrative fee
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues
Interest

Total nonoperating revenues
Net income
Retained earnings, beginning of year

Retained earnings, end of year

Years ended June 30,

70

2001 2000

$ 1,028,881 $ 1,021,475
227,090 144,717
436,868 407,727

_ 49332

_ 713,250

315,591

128,053

128,053

443,644

1,824.496

$_2.268,140

41,566

594.010

427,465

122,165

122,165

549,630
1,274,866

$_1,824,49%
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
Property & Casualty Fund

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended June 30,

2001
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating income $ 315,591
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
- Increase in deposits (39,990)
Increase in claims payable -
Net cash provided by operating activities 275,601
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income 128,053
Net increase in cash 403,654
Cash, beginning of year 2.362.496
Cash, end of year $_2,766,150

71

2000

$ 427,465




ACCOUNT GROUPS

General Fixed Assets - Represents a summary of the fixed assets of the City, other than those fixed
assets which are accounted for in the Enterprise Funds. Fixed assets generally include items of a
nonexpendable nature presumed to have a useful life in excess of one year and represent a monetary
investment large enough to warrant maintaining records of the items. These assets are recorded at cost
or at amounts considered by management to represent estimated historical cost. The City has elected
not to include their public domain or infrastructure general fixed assets in the general fixed asset
account group.
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
General Fixed Assets

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY SOURCE

General fixed assets:

Land and land improvements
Buildings

Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Other

Total general fixed assets

Investment in general fixed assets from:
General fund revenues

General obligation bonds

Capital projects fund

Special revenues funds

Donations

Total investment in general fixed assets

June 30,

73

2001

$ 5,492,283
9,771,940
151,330
4,681,047
3,811,882
15,785,906

$_39,694,388

$ 11,398,601
3,000,000
19,120,380
2,672,342
3.503.065

$_39,694,388

2000

$ 4,981,066
6,588,761
130,195
4,046,510
3,757,364
14,618,335

$34,122.231

$10,749,772
3,000,000
14,245,637
2,623,757
3.503.065

$34,122 231
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
General Fixed Assets

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

Year ended June 30, 2001

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2000 Additions Deletions 2001

Health facilities project $ 28,333 $ - % - 28,333
Highway safety 187 - - 187
Other 3,835,425 - - 3,835,425
Miscellaneous real estate 2,394,835 - - 2,394 835
General government 5,181,190 1,466,875 - 6,648,065
Police department 3,454,094 254,972 114,055 3,595,011
Fire department 2,243,367 293,758 - 2,537,125
Animal control 23,231 - 6,502 16,729
Community service 3,636 2,018 - 5,654
Mediation center 17,613 - - 17,613
Lights, meters and traffic control 27,538 27,930 - 55,468
Engineering and supervision 134,583 22,846 22,345 135,084
Parks and cemeteries 2,247,423 8,637 18,023 2,238,037
Street 3,122,071 1,252,495 58,373 4,316,193
Recreation 3,675,876 - - 3,675,876
Swimming pool 24,229 - - 24,229
Airport 4,359,001 - - 4,359,001
West Georgia Medical 479,480 - - 479,480
Community and economic development 188,640 2,410,450 - 2,599,090
School system 250,000 - - 250,000
Garage 2,246,770 38,575 - 2,285,345
Trash and refuse 184,709 12,899 - 197,608

Total $5,791,455 $_219,298 $39,694,388
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)

Statistical tables differ from financial statements because they usually cover more than one fiscal year
and may present non-accounting data. These tables reflect social economic data, financial trends and
the fiscal capacity of the government.
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Grant Thornton &

Accountants and GRANT THORNTON LLP
Management Consultants
The U.S. Member Firm of
Grant Thornton International

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCTAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
The City of LaGrange, Georgia

We have audited the financial statements of the City of LaGrange, Georgia (the “City”) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2001, and have issued our report thereon dated August 31, 2001. We conducted our
audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Compliance

- As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of

- material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provision of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general
purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting.
Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be a material weakness.

235 Peachtree Street, N.E.
2300 North Tower
Atlanta, GA 30303-1499
Tel: 404 330-2000

Fax: 404 330-2047
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and City Council, management
and others within the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the specified users.

opont Ohorntins LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
August 31, 2001




Grant Thornton %

Accountants and GRANT THORNTON LLP
Management Consultants

The U.S. Member Firm of

Grant Thornton International

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
The City of LaGrange, Georgia

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of LaGrange, Georgia (the “City”) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2001. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2001.

235 Peachtree Street, N.E.
2300 North Tower
Atlanta, GA 30303-1499
Tel: 404 330-2000

Fax: 404 330-2047
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that
we consider to be material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City as of and for the year ended June
30, 2001, and have issued our report thereon dated August 31, 2001. Our audit was performed for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by OMB Circular A-133, and
the accompanying project cost schedules and source and application of funds schedules are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and City Council, management

and others within the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the specified users.

ot Oborntiro LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
August 31, 2001
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City of LaGrange, Georgia

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended June 30, 2001

Federal Grantor/Pass-through
Grantor Program Title

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Summer Food Program

U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services

Passed-through Georgia Department of

Human Resources
Social Service Block Grant

Chattahoochee - Flint RDC

Total U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services

U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development
Passed-through Georgia Department
of Community Affairs
Community Home Investment
Program (CHIP)

U.S. Department of Justice
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
In-car Computer Grant
COPS in School
Bullet Proof Vest Partnership Grant

Total U.S. Department of Justice
U.S. Department of Transportation
Highway Safety Grant
Highway Safety Grant

Total U. S. Department of Transportation

Grand total

95

Pass-
Federal through

CFDA Grantor Federal
Number Number Expenditures
10.555 598-08-016 $ 51,000
93.667 427-93-02018 39,000
93.044 04-141-00 81,625
120,625
14.239 96m-x-141-726-011 123,190
16.592 98-01-LLEBG 4,249
16.592 99-00-LLEBG 4,963
16.579 2000-LB-BX-3169 47,644
16.579 2000-SHWX-0083 28,734
16.592 00-00-2756 14,000
99,590
20.600 CP-99-14-202 6,428
20.600 CP-98-14-105 16,866
23,294
$__417.699
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - CONTINUED

Year ended June 30, 2001

Note A - Significant Accounting Policies

This schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore
some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from the amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the City’s general purpose financial statements.

Note B - Loans Outstanding

The City had the following loan balances outstanding at June 30, 2001.

Program Title CFDA Number Amount
Community Development
Block Grants - State’s Program 14.228 $ 155,876
Other $ 103,999
HODAG $ 7,504,422

Note C - Subrecipients

During the year ended June 30, 2001, the City provided the following amounts to subrecipients.

Program Title CEDA Number Amount
Summer Food Program 10.555 $ 51,000
Community Home Investment

Program 14.305 $ 123,190
Social Service Block Grant 93.667 $ 39,000
Chattahoochee - Flint RDC 93.044 $ 81,625
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City of LaGrange, Georgia
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year ended June 30, 2001

Section I - Summary Of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: unqualified.
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified? No.
Reportable conditions not considered to be material weakness? None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements reported? No.
Federal Awards
Internal control over major program:
Material weaknesses identified? No.
Reportable conditions not considered to be material weakness? None reported

Type of auditors’ report on compliance for major programs: unqualified.

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with section 510(a) of
Circular A-133? No.

Identification of major programs:

CEDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.239 Community Home Investment Program
16.579 In-Car Computer Grant

The threshold used to distinguish between Types A and B programs: $300,000.
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Yes.
Section II - Financial Statement Findings
There were no financial statement findings.
Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no federal award findings and questioned costs.
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